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CAMBRIDGE REGIONAL COLLEGE 

Strategic report 

NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY 

The Governing Body presents their annual report together with the financial statements and 

auditor’s report for Cambridge Regional College for the year ended 31 July 2022. 

Legal status 

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the 

purpose of conducting Cambridge Regional College.  The College is an exempt charity for the 

purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. 

Mission 

Governors review the College’s mission and vision on an annual basis; our mission is “To 
transform lives and create prosperity by delivering technical and professional education that 
meets the needs of students, employers and communities in Cambridgeshire and the 
surrounding area” and our vision is “To be outstanding in enabling students to excel and for 
serving employers and communities”. 

Every job at Cambridge Regional College contributes to the mission and vision. 

Our Mission was unchanged in 2021/22 but the College had to achieve it whilst also considering 
the implications, restrictions and knock-on effect that the ongoing pandemic brought. Study 
programmes returned to face to face delivery with an online option available when learners were 
unable to come on site due to Covid restrictions, in order to reduce the chance of in-college 
transmission of COVID. Enhanced cleaning regimens continued, one-way systems were retained 
initially and classrooms and workshops were socially distanced. Student and staff safety was 
prioritised over all else and the wearing of masks continued for a significant part of the year. 

Public benefit 

Cambridge Regional College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and 

is regulated by the Secretary of State for Education.  The members of the Governing Body, who 

are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on pages 26-28.  In setting and reviewing the College’s 

strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for the Charity Commission’s 

guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the 

advancement of education. 

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the 

advancement of education to over 10,300 students, including some 525 students with high 
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needs.  The College provides education without charge to young people, to those who are 

unemployed and adults taking English and maths courses who have not previously attained that 

level of qualification.  The College adjusts its courses to meet the needs of local employers and 

has provided training during the year to over 1,000 apprentices.  The College is committed to 

providing information, advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable 

courses for as many students as possible regardless of their educational background. 

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through 

the advancement of education: 

• High quality teaching 

• Widening participation and tackling of social exclusion 

• Excellent employment record for students 

• Strong student support systems 

• Strong links with employers, industry and commerce 

Implementation of strategic plan  

At the September 2021 Corporation meeting, Governors reviewed and updated the strategic plan 

for the period to 2024. This strategic plan links to both the College’s accommodation strategy 

and financial forecasts and sets out a number of annual objectives which are supported by a 

range of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). These KPIs are agreed by the Governors at the start 

of the academic year and reported against at each Corporation meeting. 

Non-financial key measures within the plan and outturns achieved are below: 

• Known positive destination of completers – 97% by 2022 – outturn 92% in 2020/21 

• Overall study programme successful achievement – 90% by 2022 – outturn 80.8% 

• Overall successful achievements in apprenticeships -82% by 2022 - outturn 60.0% 

• English and maths GCSE pass rate (all grades) – 93% by 2022 – outturn 93.2% 

• English and maths GCSE Grade 4 and above (re-takes) – 44% by 2022– outturn 22.2% 

• English and maths progress score (DfE) - 0.2 by 2022– outturn not yet published 

• Student satisfaction – teaching good or better – 95% by 2022– outturn 96% (Study 

Programmes) 

• Staff survey – satisfaction % - 91% by 2022– outturn 87% 

As with the previous two years, the pandemic continues to adversely affect the College’s financial 

performance albeit to a lessening degree.  The most significant impact remains on the 

International Business which has yet to fully recover. 

The College’s continuing strategic priorities are as follows: 

1. Excellent student experience 

2. Excellent employer engagement 
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3. Excellent staff performance and experience 

4. Strong finances 

The College has performed against these priorities as follows: 

1. Overall student achievement rates were 84.9% in 2021/22 compared to 86.5% in 2018/19 

and student satisfaction rates stood at 92% for young people and 98% for adult learners 

compared to 95% and 97% in 2020/21 and 85.1% in 2018/19 (FE Choices data was not 

produced for 2020/21 due to impact on assessments caused by the lockdown).   

2. Employer satisfaction stood at 96% in 2021/22. The most recent comparator was 90.4% in 

2018/19 as published on FE Choices.  FE Choices did not take place in the period 2019/20 

to 2021/22. 

3. The staff satisfaction survey declined from 93.5% in 2020/21 to 85%. 

4. The College’s ESFA financial health grade is currently graded as ‘Requires Improvement’ 

and whilst it was anticipated that it would return to ‘Good’ in 21/22 the revenue position 

was not sufficiently strong enough and the ‘Requires Improvement’ grade was retained. A 

return to ‘Good’ is planned for 2022/23. 

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators and 

has used the FE Choices data available on the GOV.UK website, which looks at measures such 

as success rates and learner and employer satisfaction rates but the DfE does not intend to 

run the FE Choices learner satisfaction survey again in its current form and the most recent 

data set is for 2018-19. The Department for Education is considering how to modify the FE 

Choices survey. 

 

Financial objectives 

The financial objectives for the year were embedded within the three year plan and reflected 

in the Financial KPIs that are reported in each month’s management accounts. The impact of 

the pandemic which was still a factor during 2021-22 along with rising inflation and the 

economic and consumer confidence effect of the war in Ukraine (on International activity in 

particular) have all had an adverse impact on the College’s financial position. The principal 

elements of the objectives are set out below along with the actual position achieved during 

the 2021/22 year; 

1. To achieve a surplus during the period that results in an EBITDA surplus of 10% of income 

in 2021/22.  

Not achieved. As with 2020/21, the restrictions placed on the College and the impact on 

the commercial environment arising from both the pandemic and the war in Ukraine led to 

a significant reduction in commercial and international income, and participation in 

apprenticeship and adult learning. In addition, the College was unsuccessful in achieving 

in-year growth funding for its 16-19 activity and had reductions in both ESFA AEB and ESFA 

Small Group tuition Fund allocations after the budget had been approved. In 2021/22 the 
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College generated an operational deficit and an EBITDA surplus of £87k which represents 

0.25% of income. 

2. To return a financial health rating of ‘Good’ in 2021-22. 

Not achieved. Due to the revenue pressures set out in the paragraph above, the College 

was unable to return to a financial health status of ‘Good’ despite a significant cash inflow 

from the sale of I Block which was a building identified as surplus to requirements and was 

sold in May of 2022 leading to a cash injection of £4m. Had the revenue position been 

slightly stronger, the College could still have generated a deficit and achieved a grade of 

‘Good’ but the revenue performance determined that it should continue to be ‘Requires 

Improvement’. A target of ‘Good’ has been set for 2022/23. 

3. To ensure that the cash flow position was such to generate sufficient cash from operating 

to support the on-going business needs, including capital investment and restructuring as 

necessary and meet all banking covenants.  

Not achieved. Although the sale of I Block during the year resulted in a £4m cash inflow to 

the College which bolstered its cash reserves and cash days significantly, had the sale of I 

Block not taken place then the College would have probably needed to utilise an overdraft 

facility in order to resource operational and capital investment activities in the coming 

year. The College has maintained an effective working relationship with its bankers 

Santander who have continued to be very supportive during the challenging year the 

College has had. This has ensured that covenant breaches have not occurred. 

4. To maintain a sound financial base (solvency and liquidity) as measured by:  

• cash days of 30 or more – achieved 49 days excluding the overdraft facility which increases 
liquidity 

• generate an operating surplus of £376k – not achieved for 2021/22 – generated an 
operational deficit of £1,901k 

• cash inflow from operating activities for the year to 31 July 2022 – net cash inflow of 
£2.487m achieved 

• borrowing reduced to below 15% of adjusted income by 31 July 2022. Not achieved - at 
the year-end borrowing stood at 15.73% of adjusted income.  

• ESFA adjusted current ratio of 1.46 by 31 July 2022 – Achieved – adjusted current ratio was 
1.69 using the ESFA adjusted current ratio calculation. 

In pursuit of these objectives, the College continued to invest in its estate and IT infrastructure 

at both campuses within limited funding, most of which was funded upfront by the sale of I 

Block. I Block was a building that had been identified as largely underutilized and with the 

completion of the sale in March 2022 resulted in an increase to the College’s cash reserves of 

£4m. Some of the sale proceeds were earmarked for the College’s match fund commitment 

to its Transformation Fund bid but this was unsuccessful at the second stage. The College had 

invested a lot of time, effort and financing of this bid to the DfE’s Transformation fund to 

improve the estate and this resulted in the write-off of £45k of bid preparation costs. 
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Close control was exercised during the year across all cost lines (both staff and non-staff) 

which has become the standard position for an FE College and this was difficult during the 

year due to challenges around covering staff absences caused by sickness (predominantly 

driven by COVID) and vacancies created by staff turnover which was at a much higher rate 

during 2021-22. As a consequence of challenges in covering roles, the cost of agency cover 

when direct replacements could not be found, consumed any savings generated by the 

increased staff turnover. Following years of streamlining in order to contend with no funding 

increases, there are very few vacancies these days that can remain un-staffed. The costs of 

minimizing the impact of the pandemic such as opening windows during the winter period, 

extra cleaning regimes plus disruption caused by COVID absences also placed an additional 

strain on the financial performance for the year. 

Income during the year was significantly impacted by a number of different measures. Firstly, 

the College’s expectations around AEB funding and the Small Group Tuition Fund were too 

high and the final allocations came to a combined £300k below the anticipated figures, so the 

College’s budgeted surplus was already a very challenging target within the first two months 

of the year. The financial plan had also allowed for in-year growth funding for 16-19 students 

due to exceptionally encouraging application data but the conversion rate was much lower 

and many applicants chose to go to other learning venues. Centre Assessed Grades (CAGs) led 

to grade inflation which contributed to this but also a reluctance on the part of some students 

to travel further for learning due to concerns about the pandemic at the start of the year is 

also suspected to be a reason. As a consequence, the expected income for in-year growth  

(£620k) was not realized and contributed to the operating position for the year.  

Apprenticeship income was healthy compared to budget during the year as confidence 

returned on the part of employers and apprentices but the performance could have been 

better had the College not struggled with recruiting specialist assessment staff in a number of 

areas which contributed to both the late start of some apprentices leading to reduced 

potential income but also students that were in learning but not funded due to delays in 

completing programmes in a timely manner. 

The College’s International income stream was reduced to a fraction of its usual volumes and 

the reduced margin had an impact on the College’s outturn position. The planned income for 

the year was £715k but the outturn was £370k. 

KPIs financial 

The College utilizes and reports upon a suite of KPIs which include financial KPIs that are 

reported monthly in the management accounts. These KPIs (along with the format of the 

monthly management accounts) were reviewed at the start of the year to ensure they reflect 

good practice advised by both the ESFA and the FE Commissioner’s team and once agreed 

were included within each monthly financial report for governors. 
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The College is required to complete the annual Finance Record and the College Financial Forecast 

Return (CFFR) in July of each year for the ESFA.  Each return generates a financial health grade 

based on a scoring system which looks at several aspects of the financial data for a college. In 

2020-21 the College was graded as “Requires Improvement” and had hoped to return to “Good” 

in 2021-22. Even with a modest deficit this would have been possible due to the cash inflow from 

the sale of I Block but the scale of the deficit for 2021-22 has generated a default Requires 

Improvement grade for 2021-22.  

 

The continued effect of the pandemic and the emergence of the war in Ukraine on recruitment, 

learning activity and the control measures put in place both locally and nationally during the start 

of the 2021/22 year have continued to have an adverse effect on the College’s financial health 

and learning activity levels did not match those planned for in the budget which was based on an 

expectation that activity would return to pre-pandemic levels 2018/19. 

 

Cash flow improved during the year due to the sale of I Block and this meant that the College did 

not need to utilize the overdraft facility in place with Santander. A review of the need for 

continuing this facility as a financial safeguard will be taken in December 2022. 

 

As well as the financial objectives, additional KPIs are reviewed monthly by the Senior 
Management Team and regularly by Governors.   
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCES 

Financial results 

The financial target for 2021/22 was to deliver an underlying operating surplus of £376k.   

 

As with 2020/21, the pandemic disruption had an effect on the College’s financial performance 

for the year both in terms of extra direct costs incurred but also the impact it had on consumer 

confidence about participating in learning. Latterly, the war in Ukraine also had an impact on 

international activity due to an increasing reluctance to travel across the globe in addition to 

concerns about COVID. The performance of the principal funding streams for which performance 

determines funding in year is set out immediately below. 

 

The largest funding allocation received relates to 16-19 ESFA funding and represented £19.9m 

(of which £18.2m was core funding) which in student terms related to 3,162 students of which 

2,987 were in funding bands 4 and 5 (considered to be full time). This funding is almost exclusively 

guaranteed to the College despite performance (under the lagged funding methodology), but a 

positive performance during 2021/22 coupled with the size and mix of delivery during the 
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2019/20 year has ensured that the College secured a larger allocation of full-time students for 

the 2022/23 year. 

 

Apprenticeship numbers saw a return in many sectors to pre-pandemic levels and College targets 

achieved. Some sectors such as hospitality and catering and childcare had still not quite bounced 

back to previous levels. The challenge in these areas however, was not due to employer demand, 

but more candidate availability in a competitive recruitment market.   

 

The College’s engagement with employers has continued to be strong and this was reflected in 

the CRC employers’ survey results where overall satisfaction reached 96%. As an example, the 

College Careers Fairs saw 60+ employers and there was a very definite shift in the number of 

employers in the region seeking to recruit students straight from their College course at CRC.  

 

Over 40 employers engaged in Employer Forums to help shape the College curriculum and ensure 

that the College was delivering education to meet the regional skills needs. Arm Education, part 

of technology leader Arm, has joined forces with the College to raise awareness of career 

opportunities in the computing technologies sector and to attract and nurture new talent to the 

industry. 

 

In terms of adult education for classroom for 2021/22, the College was awarded two contracts; 

one from the ESFA and the other from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined 

Authority (CPCA) which totalled £5.3m. These contracts included elements for delivery of 

National Skills Fund (£164k).  

 

Whilst performance rules were relaxed for the 2020/21 year due to the effect of the pandemic, 

the rules were not relaxed for the 2021/22 year and for the ESFA, performance below 97% of the 

allocation resulted in claw back of the entire shortfall between the outturn figure and the 100% 

value of the allocation. In the case of the CPCA, there was no tolerance threshold whatsoever 

and therefore the full value of any shortfall below 100% of the allocation were indicated as being 

recoverable. This approach by both the ESFA and CPCA was challenging given that despite the 

policy changes, the effect of the pandemic on learners’ confidence still effected consumer 

behaviour and consequently the College’s financial performance in 2021-22.  

 

For the ESFA AEB allocation, the College identified from regular monitoring that it would  

underperform and agreed with the ESFA to reduce its allocation during the year by £332k but 

despite that, the outturn was still below 97% of the reduced threshold and therefore the College 

provided for a clawback of £288k which  including the £332k, totalled £620k of the original 

allocation for the year including the earlier in-year clawback. In the case of the CPCA, the 

performance was stronger and the College achieved 97.2% of its original allocation and therefore 

provided for £83k of clawback. 
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Whilst International education started to see green shoots of recovery, it had another challenging 

year. The impact of travel costs due to fuel price increases, the continued issues linked to Covid 

and the emerging cost of living crisis saw bookings postponed to the next academic year or 

cancelled. Additionally, bookings from eastern Europe (Hungary) were also cancelled. This saw a 

reduction in the revenue to £370k compared to the budget of £715k although bookings for 

2022/23 look encouraging.  

The focus has continued to be on maintaining strong stakeholder relationships and to develop 

new partnership opportunities.  As a result, the College was able to continue to welcome a group 

of students from Tromso in Norway, a strong partnership which has been running for many years 

and two new groups from India which cemented the start of a new collaboration.  In addition, 

the College has been proud to offer ESOL training to large numbers of Ukrainians who have 

settled in the UK.  The development of their English skills has already helped many secure work.  

Commercial enterprises such as the College gym and restaurant bounced back very quickly post 

pandemic seeing gym members exceed pre-pandemic levels and catering income reach new 

highs. 

During the 2021-22 year the College continued to target cost savings where possible and specific 

operational measures such as the re-shaping of the RICOH print function to a remote service all 

played their part in reducing future cost commitments. The College also started to look at 

improving systems and processes and this is an ongoing project.  The College put in place a new 

software package (ShuttleID) for managing bus pass purchases for students which has led to 

reduced workload and increased income collection efficiency along with aiding debt 

management. This was implemented in August 2022. The system also offers users opportunities 

to suggest amendments to existing routes and to suggest new routes and this permits viability of 

suggestions to be assessed. The College also assessed its volume of bus route activity and 

withdrew some routes that were making significant losses where appropriate alternative travel 

arrangements existed for the majority of learners. 

Following the merger with Huntingdonshire Regional College it was decided that in order to 

ensure curriculum would still be delivered in some areas, the College would continue to deliver 

some financially challenging courses at Huntingdon even given inefficient class sizes. During 

2021/22 the decision was taken to combine some provision at the Huntingdon campus with that 

in Cambridge to improve financial performance.  

 

The challenges encountered in 2021/22 that affected the financial outturn have delayed the 

College improving its financial health from ‘Requires Improvement’ to ‘Good’. With the inflow of 

cash from the sale of I Block it would have been possible to return to ‘Good’, even with a smaller 

deficit but the size of the deficit generated an automatic ‘Requires Improvement’ grading. The 

financial outlook for 2022/23 has improved due to a significant increase in lagged 16-19 funding 

compared to 2021/22 and therefore it is reasonably expected to achieve a small surplus and 

return to ‘Good’ financial health in 2022/23. 
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During the year the College assisted the Cambridge and Peterborough Combined Authority 

(CPCA) in selling the former iMET centre at Alconbury Weald. This transaction has been reflected 

in the statutory accounts and leaves an asset balance for the engineering and other equipment 

that is now utilised by the College and the associated capital grant. The value of these assets as 

at 31st July 2022 was £285k. In the 2020/21 financial statements the College had a contingent 

liability for £10.5m in the event that it disposed of the iMET building without formal agreement. 

As part of the sale of the building the CPCA has issued a deed of release to the College and the 

contingent liability has been removed.  

 

Treasury policies and objectives 

Treasury management is the management of the College cash flows, its banking, money market 

and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

The College has separate treasury management arrangements in place to manage cash flows, 

banking arrangements and the risks associated with those activities. 

Short-term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer 

although none has been required during 2021/22. During 2021/22 a £1.5m overdraft facility has 

remained in place with Santander in case it is required but it remained unutilised during the year. 

It is intended to review the continued need for this at the end of the Autumn term in 2022. 

Theoretically the College should not need it following the cash inflow from the sale of I Block but 

with no increase in funding and unprecedented pay and non-pay inflationary pressures, the 

College may decide to retain this facility. 

Cash flow and liquidity  

Cash flow was positive with net cash flow from operating activities at £2.487m (2020/21 £0.59m).  

This figure includes the receipt from the sale of I Block which at £4m serves to show that without 

this the College would have had a net cash outflow for the year of £1.513m. The College invested 

£1.6m in fixed assets during the year which was assisted by the increase in cash reserves as a 

consequence of the sale of I Block. 

 

The College has retained a £1.5m overdraft facility with Santander but there was no requirement 

to access this facility during the financial year despite Covid-19 and inflationary pressures clearly 

having an impact on the cash position of the College due to the loss of income during the year. 

The cash days position at the end of the financial year was 49 days and this compares favourably 

with the FE Commissioner minimum target of 25 days.  
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Reserves policy 

Reserves have been somewhat depleted during the past few years as a result of the pandemic, 

underperformance to contracts, deficits, increased pension liability and previously declining 

student recruitment.  Nine years with relatively no ESFA funding rate increases (just the small 

increase in 2020/21), no increase in adult or apprenticeship funding rates is also a contributory 

factor. During the 2021/22 year the I Block building was sold in order to boost the College’s cash 

reserves without a significant impact on the useable space the College has. This sale completed 

in March 2022 and resulted in a cash inflow of £4m which has increased the College’s cash 

reserves comfortably above the FE Commissioner and ESFA benchmarks. The intention of this 

cash inflow is to in part allow for some investment in infrastructure but also to strengthen the 

cash reserves. 

The pension liability decreased this year by £43m from a net liability of £38.8m to a net asset of 

£4.1m. This movement was due in the main to a significant shift in the changes in financial 

assumptions used by the actuary commissioned to produce the reports to support the pension 

entries within the statutory accounts. This change, coupled with a slight reduction in revaluation 

reserve led to the overall movement in reserves amounts to that of an increase of just over £40m. 

Net assets remain healthy and a return to building surpluses will be key in the medium to long-

term to fund capital investment. The College recognises the importance of reserves in the 

financial stability of any organisation and plans to ensure that there are adequate reserves to 

support the College’s core activities but equally safeguard enough funds to enable ongoing 

investment in the assets and facilities of the organisation. As at the balance sheet date, the 

Income and Expenditure reserve stands at £23m (2020/21: £(16.7)m) having been impacted 

considerably by the pension valuation with total Reserves standing at £63.1m (2020/21: £23.5m).  

It is the Corporation’s intention to increase reserves over the life of the strategic plan through 

the generation of annual operating surpluses in order to fund ongoing capital investment whilst 

maintaining good financial health. 

Group companies 

The College has four subsidiaries as listed in Note 11 all of which are dormant. 

 

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

Student numbers 

The College had 3,047 Band 4 and 5 funded 16-19 year old students in learning at the key census 

point at the end of November which was 60 higher than  the allocation granted by the ESFA of 
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2,987 for 2021/22. Overall, the College had over 10,300 learners during the year which also 

included 1,081 apprentices, 276 HE learners and 5,570 adult and leisure learners. 

The College demonstrated strong delivery in the project with Form the Future funded by the 

Greater Cambridgeshire Partnership to deliver additional support for businesses to enable them 

to bounce back quickly post pandemic.  This contract, which was awarded in April 2021, has 

enabled the College to support numerous businesses new to apprenticeships, enabling them to 

access Government incentive payments, launch a new programme to enable companies to train 

people in their organisation to be Young People Champions mentoring those on apprenticeship 

programmes, work experience and industry placements, and develop a series of careers videos 

in conjunction with SPT Labtech. The College recruited over 200 higher education students. 

Student achievements  

Last year was the first year without assessment changes due to Covid since 2018/19, although 

the impact of Covid was still felt in the first half of the academic year, with lower attendance due 

to sickness. Students needed support to adapt back into face-to-face learning and formal 

assessments after two years of disrupted learning.  

Overall, student achievement fell slightly to 84.9% last year compared to 86.5%. Compared with 

2018/19, 16-18 achievement rates were 80.8% compared to 84.4%. Adult learners’ achievements 

have risen slightly from 88.6% in 2018/19 to 88.7% in 2021/22. 

Apprenticeship achievement rates were 60% in 2021/22. This was 6.6% lower than the previous 

year due to the ongoing impact of Covid on work-based learning and assessment. Achievement 

rates for Apprenticeship Standards, newer programmes that account for all new apprenticeships, 

rose to 58.7% from 50.6% in 2020/21.  

The impact of Covid on assessment means that national datasets have not been published since 

2018/19. 

Future developments 

The merger with Huntingdonshire College is now fully embedded with the ‘One College, Two 

Campuses’ message. Consideration was made over courses at the Huntingdon Campus to check 

viability but during the 2020/21 year it was decided that with ongoing mitigations and classroom 

limitations due to the pandemic, no provision would be moved between campuses. Some 

changes to Art and Engineering provision were made in 2021/22 and changes to Business, 

Computing and Motor Vehicle have been made in 2022/23. Numbers in the Construction facilities 

had reached capacity and there was no space for growth in 2021/22 without development. After 

the successful bid for a Local Growth Fund Grant from the CPCA, works commenced early 

2020/21 to move multi-skills to a new and suitable environment. Further works commenced in 
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Spring 2021 to convert underutilised space for the delivery of construction courses which in turn 

has enabled growth for brick, multi-skills and carpentry in September 2021. This has allowed good 

progression from Level 1 to Level 2 courses which would have been restricted by the facilities 

prior to this investment.  Further internal work commenced in Spring 2022 to allow for more 

growth in this area and the introduction of Electrical Apprentice provision in 22/23. Further 

development is planned to develop the SEND department facilities.  

 

Adult education continued to be affected by the pandemic in 21/22 and was either entirely or 

partially online through most of 2021/22. Consumer confidence, the cost of living and the cost of 

travel has affected the running of practical and leisure/recreational courses. It is planned that 

these will resume fully in 2022/23. The College continues to develop a suite of online courses to 

meet the changing needs of the workforce and employers, as well as the needs of individuals 

needing to upskill or take on additional training. There are over 100 courses now available online 

and online course income amounted to over £650k during 2021/22. 

 

The estates strategy implementation continues to progress on the development of facilities to 

meet future needs, catering for the demand requirements expected from current skills shortages 

where capacity is pressurised within the College. Unfortunately though, the College was 

unsuccessful in its Transformation Wave 2 bid despite progressing to the second stage and must 

now re-evaluate how the poor condition accommodation at the Huntingdon campus can be 

improved within the College’s limited funding. 

All full time and study programme courses returned to a fully face to face model in 2021/22. The 

college continues to use MS Teams for communication with students, uploading of work and as 

a means to teach anyone who is not in the college (for example suffering from a respiratory 

infection but well enough to work). 

Recruitment and retention of 16-18 year old remains strong. ‘Welcome to College’ events moved 

back to face to face, with Open Days, Welcome Events and Taster Days all being held throughout 

the year. 

Payment performance 

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 

November 1998, requires colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make 

payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the provision of goods or services or the date on 

which the invoice was received.  The target set by the Treasury for payment to suppliers within 

30 days is 95%. 



Cambridge Regional College  Members’ report and financial statements 
    for the year ended 31 July 2022 

16 
 

During the accounting period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022, the College paid 71.10% of its 

invoices within 30 days. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late payment for 

this period but will aim to increase this percentage to the 95% target in the 2022/23 year. 

Events after the end of the reporting period 

On 29 November 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclassified all college corporations as 

public sector institutions with immediate effect and this prompted the Department for Education 

to introduce some new rules for colleges which will take effect during 2022/23. 

The College considers this announcement to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and is 

evaluating the implications of the announcement and the potential new rules but does not 

consider that they will have an impact on these financial statements. 

Future prospects and Going Concern 

After a challenging year, the budget for 2022/23 is based on lower growth expectations around 

income and therefore by continuing to exercise the control and scrutiny of both pay and non-pay 

expenditure that the College has established, the College will be better placed to achieve a 

positive financial performance. The year will not be without its challenges though, with inflation 

at the highest rate for a generation and an increase in 16-19 course delivery hours expectations 

set by the ESFA in return for the increased funding. 

The College is expecting a visit from Ofsted and welcomes the opportunity for external 

endorsement of the work of the last 3 years to improve achievement rates for students across 

both campuses as the College strives to achieve a “Good” with “Outstanding” aspects rating from 

an Ofsted perspective having been given a rating of “Requires Improvement” in the pre-pandemic 

visit. 

Although the College was unsuccessful with its Transformation 2 capital funding bid, the College 

will seek to obtain capital funding where it is needed to address either poor quality 

accommodation or indeed increased capacity demands through higher learner numbers. The 

move back to generating positive cashflows and the receipt of the I Block monies will underpin 

this. 

The College has planned for positive cash flows in the 2022/23 year which will improve its 

liquidity and allow it to continue to improve its infrastructure and equipment. 

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it 

continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 
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Financial 

The College has £63.1m of net assets and long-term debt of £5.0m. Deferred capital grant, 

excluding year 1, is shown within creditors falling due after more than one year per FRS 102. The 

College wishes to continue to accumulate reserves and cash balances in order to provide for 

future investment and contingencies. 

People 

As at 31st July 2022, the College employed 689 (574 FTE) staff of whom 303 (267 FTE) were 

teaching staff. 

Reputation 

The College has a good reputation in the region. Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the 

College’s success in attracting students and maximising partnership opportunities.  

 

In 2020/21 the College secured significant positive media coverage with an estimated AVE 

(Advertising Value Equivalent) of £849K according to the College’s media monitoring company.   

 

The College achieved success and was announced as the Regional winner in the first ever AoC 

Planet Earth Games and was awarded the ROSPA Order of Distinction for excellence in Health 

and Safety. 

 

Student successes have been celebrated across the year; some of the highlights include the CRC 

Apprenticeship Awards recognising apprentices and employers across different sectors and 

professions. A heating and ventilation student was awarded BESA Apprentice of the Year for the 

North East, the Green Team were announced as finalists in the National Disability and Autism 

Awards, and catering students reached the finals in the Panasonic Autumn Challenge, a Passion 

to Inspire, Young Risotto Chef and Country Range Student Chef Challenge.   Games Development 

students were nominated for a BAFTA for the game they produced, a CRC sports student became 

the AoC Golf Champion and engineering students competed for The REME Craftsman Cup.  

 

CRC students hosted numerous fundraising events and supported community events and 

projects. 

 

Celebrations of its students’ skills are essential for the College’s success in attracting students 

and demonstrating the value added by the College.  

 

A strong focus on the CRC brand along with good marketing campaigns, including a strong online 

presence, have seen significant increases in applications and enrolments. 
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES: 

The College has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk 

management in all that it does.  Risk management processes are designed to protect the College’s 

assets, outcomes, reputation and financial stability.  The governing body has overall responsibility 

for risk management and its approach to managing risks and internal controls is explained in the 

Statement on Corporation Governance. 

The College has undertaken further work during the year to develop and embed the system of 

internal control, including financial, operational and risk management, which is designed to 

protect the College’s assets and reputation. 

Based on the strategic plan, both the Senior Management Team and the College Management 

Group (CMG) undertake a comprehensive review of the risks to which the College is exposed.  

The Group identifies systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions, which 

should mitigate any potential impact on the College and targets further improvements to 

maximise (within existing resources) further mitigations.  Internal controls are then implemented 

and the subsequent year’s appraisal will review their effectiveness and progress against risk 

mitigation actions.  In addition to the annual review, any risks which may arise as a result of a 

new area of work being undertaken by the College or developments caused by changes are 

tracked and considered and the CMG review the application of controls during the year between 

each annual review.  

During the year the risk register format was reviewed and significantly changed to make it a more 

focused and usable document for the executive and both Audit and Risk Committee as well as 

the Corporation. The risk register is maintained at the College level and is reviewed termly by the 

Audit and Risk Committee and Corporation. Individual committees review the risks pertaining to 

their area of responsibility.  The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks 

occurring, their potential impact on the College, the control measures in place and the actions 

being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks further.  Risks are prioritised using a consistent 

scoring system and third line assurance is tracked and recorded. 

Not all factors are within the College’s control.  Many other factors besides those listed below 

may also adversely affect the College and the section below focusses on the principal risks to the 

College most of which are represented by several risks each in the risk register. 

Government funding  

The College has had to contend with a real terms reduction over the last eight years in 16-19 

study programme rates which represents the single largest government funded income stream 

for the College at £19.9m in 2021/22. 16-19 income represents approximately 55% of the 
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College’s income and on that basis this income stream has only increased the College’s income 

by 3.1% in the period August 2013 to July 2022. During the same period, the Retail Price Index 

(RPI) has risen by 37.4%. The RPI affects costs across all of the College’s cost base yet the College 

has not had increases for its apprenticeship and adult activities so the financial impact over this 

period has been significant. 

 

A lack of committed capital funding availability continues to remain a significant risk to the 

College’s finances and general resourcing as it continues to aspire to have good quality 

accommodation for its learners and staff but is not regularly funded for it. Increasingly targeted 

and ring-fenced funds have been made available during the year, which although welcome, has 

led to increased administration and write-off of costs when bids are unsuccessful. These are just 

some examples of the increasing complexity and challenges faced by colleges in terms of funding 

and resourcing and this is not expected to improve significantly into 2022/23. This is compounded 

by the reduction in real terms funding because it is more challenging to generate cash to fund 

capital investment. 

 

Funding is becoming more complex and diverse and the College received funding in the year for 

adult provision from two sources; the ESFA and the CPCA. Capital funding has only been available 

as a consequence of successful bids which can only be put together by engaging external 

professionals at cost, and if bids are unsuccessful the costs are usually written off.  During the 

year the College wrote off £45k of bid preparation costs for the unsuccessful Transformation 2 

Fund which the College had progressed to Stage 2 at before the application was unsuccessful. 

 

The challenging financial environment risk is mitigated in a number of ways as follows: 

• Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key 

relationships with the various funding bodies and combined authorities 

• Ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit 

from public funding 

• Regular dialogue with each funding body and being proactive in anticipating future 

funding opportunities and modifying strategy to optimise the financial benefits arising 

from changes in funding policy 

• Maintaining and monitoring the financial viability of the College and the targets 

required to achieve such viability. 

An emerging concern during 2021/22 is the prospect that as T Levels become established, a 

number of existing vocational programmes will become unfunded by the ESFA. Not only will this 

have a significant consequence for the College’s finances but will also potentially adversely 

impact a number of young people with more limited study options at age 16.  
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Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College 

The funding challenges set out above are a significant issue for the College in trying to improve 

its ESFA financial health grade. The College is currently graded as Requires Improvement and is 

targeting a return to a grade of Good in the short to medium term.  

With the advent of the FE College insolvency regime, the College has continued to focus on its 

financial management to ensure its financial viability in the future.  The impact of the pandemic 

on a number of income streams but also extra cost in ensuring the safety of learners and staff 

has meant that the College has remained in the Requires Improvement category despite 

anticipating a return to Good before the longer term implications of the pandemic were known.  

The College has manageable levels of borrowing with no current requirement for more and has 

continued to repay its existing loans as due. Cash generation will continue to be targeted to 

ensure that there are sufficient cash reserves to fund ongoing and future infrastructure 

investment but this will become more challenging if funding rates for apprenticeships, adult 

provision and 16-19 study programmes are not increased. 

This financial risk is managed through focus on: 

• Rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis 

• Regular in-year budget and cashflow monitoring 

• Robust financial controls 

• Exploring on-going procurement efficiencies 

• Ensuring the College secures all available funding opportunities as they become 

available  

Ofsted grading 

The College’s current grade following the Ofsted inspection in 2020 is Requires Improvement. 

The College has produced a Post Inspection Action Plan and is closely monitoring its progress to 

a higher Ofsted grade. If the College does not progress to either Good or Outstanding then this 

presents a risk to the learners in the College’s significant geographical community and the 

College’s reputation. 

In managing this risk and the intention of improving the College’s grading, the following measures 

are in place: 

• Comprehensive Post-Inspection Action Plan in place 

• Use of standard systems to track student and apprentice progress, with improved 

management reporting 

• Comprehensive set of quality assurance and improvement actions 
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• Robust continual self-assessment process to review quality and impact of improvement 

actions 

• Internal Quality Reviews led by external consultants to review progress against the 

improvement plan 

• Oversight by governors through the Learning & Quality Committee and a post-Ofsted task 

and finish group 

Staffing 

During the year the College experienced staff turnover of 27%. This has proved to be time 

consuming due to the higher percentage of staff that have to be recruited, inducted and trained 

but also led to a loss of corporate memory within the College. A competitive wage market 

increased pay costs due to both the cost of securing good candidates at higher salaries and 

increased use of agency staff to cover essential roles where appointments could not be made. All 

in all, despite high staff turnover there were negligible savings against the staffing budget due to 

savings being consumed by higher agency costs. Years of constraints on staffing costs coupled 

with increased expectations and obligations on the part of the ESFA now leave the College in a 

position whereby vacancies simply cannot be left unfilled in the majority of cases.  

Pay inflation is higher than the College can afford and with insufficient funding increases, this risk 

now features as one of the highest scoring risks (net score after mitigations) on the corporate 

risk register.  

To address the risk, the College is continually looking at how to remove and reduce tasks and 

processes in order to increase capacity which could realise increased efficiency over time but this 

has to be balanced with both the expectations and obligations to stakeholders such as the ESFA, 

OfS and Ofsted and the capital costs of any systems intended to increase productivity. The FE 

sector is relatively niche and to ensure generic business process systems can work effectively, 

development time must be bought in which comes at a cost. 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Cambridge Regional College has many stakeholders. These include: 

• Students and parents 

• Education sector funding bodies (Education and Skills Funding Agency / Office for Students) 

• Staff  

• Local employers (with specific links) including Cambridge University Hospitals Trust, Arm 
Education and the University of Cambridge and employer representative bodies including 
Cambridge Ahead, The CBI and The Cambridgeshire Chambers of Commerce 

• Local authorities (Cambridgeshire County Council, Huntingdonshire District Council and 
Cambridge City Council) 
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• Mayoral combined authorities (Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority and 
Greater London Authority) 

• Partners such as Form the Future who co-deliver a programme on behalf of the Greater 
Cambridge Partnership 

• Feeder schools 

• The local community 

• International partners and agents 

• Other FE institutions 

• Trade unions (The trade unions of which the College staff are members of include the 
University and College Union (UCU), National Education Union (NEU) and UNISON (the public 
service union) 

• Professional bodies 
 
The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular 
communication with them through the College website, communication channels such as 
newsletters, social media, webinars and meetings. 
 
Equality  
 
The College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here.  
We respect and positively value differences in age, race, sex and gender identity, sexual 
orientation, marriage and civil partnerships, disability, religion and belief.  We strive vigorously 
to be an inclusive college and to actively remove all barriers to learning and to include all people 
within the College community. This policy is resourced, implemented and monitored on a 
planned basis.  The College’s Equality Policy is published on the College’s website. 
 
The College publishes an Annual Equality Report and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance 
with all relevant equality legislation, including the Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes 
equality impact assessments on all new policies and procedures and publishes the results of 
these.  Equality impact assessments are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures on 
a prioritised basis. 
 
The College is a ‘Positive about Disabled’ employer and is committed to the principles and 
objectives of the ‘Positive about Disabled’ standard. As a disability confident employer the 
College considers all employment applications from disabled persons, and recognises the talents 
that disabled people bring to our workplace. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, 
every effort is made to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College’s policy 
is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promotion, which, as far as 
possible, provide identical opportunities to those of non-disabled employees. The College aims 
to challenge attitudes towards disability; to increase understanding of disability; to remove 
barriers to disabled people and those with long-term health conditions; and to ensure that 
disabled people have the opportunities to fulfil their potential and realise their aspirations in-line 
with all disability confident employers.  



Cambridge Regional College  Members’ report and financial statements 
    for the year ended 31 July 2022 

23 
 

 
The College has committed to the ‘Mindful Employer’ initiative to assist the mental health 
wellbeing of staff. The College has achieved accreditation to the Committed to Equality (C2E) 
standard at the gold (highest) level.  The College has also implemented an updated Equality & 
Diversity training programme which all staff have attended.  Refresher training and training for 
new starters is carried out on an on-going basis. This is to ensure that mindfulness is central to 
our support for all staff and their wellbeing. 
 
Disability statement 
 
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010: 
 
The admission policy for all students is described in the College charter. As an inclusive college 
our aim is to provide learning opportunities to all young people and adults. We ensure that 
through effective transitions onto College courses that the appropriate levels of support are put 
in place to ensure that all students can access and achieve their learning goals through a high 
quality and inclusive learning journey.  Appeals against a decision not to offer a place are dealt 
with under the complaints policy and for SEND in line with the Special Educational Needs Code 
of Practice. 
 
As an inclusive college there has been a focus on investment in the development of a range of 
different roles and skillsets to ensure that the student experience is maintained and developed, 
as a high quality experience. Our Team Leaders and Inclusion Co-ordinators have implemented 
support for students who require support with their cognition and learning; social, emotional 
mental health development; communication and interaction skills; sensory and physical 
disabilities. There is also a Specialist Learning Support team who work to assess students with 
supporting curriculum delivery teams to implement strategies for student normal way of working 
practices. Students with visual and hearing impairments are supported by a lead for this area and 
a team of communication support workers. In addition to this, students are well supported by a 
team of Learning Support Mentors both in and out of class and for high need students a Pastoral 
Support Adviser provides emotional literacy support. All staff, both teaching and non-teaching 
are supported with staff development opportunities to ensure that the college is welcoming 
place for everyone and that we develop our workforce with the changes to the student 
demographic, in terms of SEND.  
 
The College has a very good approach to personalising learning programmes for students and 
follows College quality processes to ensure the maintenance of robust quality practices and to 
ensure that these internal programmes are of a high quality. Student outcomes are monitored 
through a variety of college systems, including the Recognising and Recording Progress and 
Achievement (RARPA) outcomes and through Markbook on Promonitor. Progress is also 
monitored through student Specific, Measurable, Attainable and Realistic Targets (SMART) and 
where applicable the student Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) objectives. In addition to 
being ambitious for all students, the College ensures that there is excellent academic rigour and 
an inclusion of study skills, personal development and life skills.  
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The College has an experienced and professional team of Student Advisors. This team provides a 
range of support to ensure that those experiencing personal or emotional concerns are provided 
with the appropriate support to enable them to succeed. Rigorous processes are in place to 
support and improve student mental health and wellbeing, developing learners’ confidence, 
resilience and knowledge so that they can keep themselves mentally healthy and access 
education. Support for students at the College was formally acknowledged by TES when the 
provision was awarded the Support for Students Award in November 2020. 
 
The College has strong working relationships with local and national charities and not for profit 
organisations to supplement the support offered in-house. The College has been part of a trail 
blazer project to train Postgraduate Educational Mental Health Practitioners since March 2020. 
The service has been well utilised by students and broadened the access to specialist support 
services. 

Trade union facility time 

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College 

to publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College. 

  
Number of employees who were relevant 
union officials during the relevant period 

Full-time equivalent employee number 

11 10.35 

 

Percentage of time spent on facility time 

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0% 1 

1-50% 10 

51-99% 0 

100% 0 

 

Percentage of Pay Bill spent on facility time 

Total cost of facility time £20,365 

Total pay bill £25,221,766 

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time, calculated as: 
(total cost of facility time/total pay bill) x 100 

0.08% 
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Paid trade union activities 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid 
facility time hours (total hours spent on paid trade union activities by 
relevant union officials during the relevant period/total paid facility 
time hours) x 100 

 
3.6% 

 

 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS 
The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they 

are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are 

unaware; and each member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the College’s auditors are aware 

of that information. 

 

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13th December 2022 and signed on 

its behalf: 

 

 

 

Heather Du Quesnay 

Chair of Corporation 
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control 

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the 

College to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure.  This statement 

covers the period from 1st August 2021 to 31st July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the 

annual report and financial statements. 

The College endeavours to conduct its business: 

1. In accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in 

Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and 

leadership); 

2. In full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The 

Code of Good Governance for English Colleges (‘The Code’). 

The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it 

has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times.  In 

carrying out its responsibilities, it takes full account of The Code of Good Governance for English 

Colleges issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally adopted on July 

2015 and the updated version on 24th May 2022.  In the opinion of the Governors, the College 

complies with all the provisions of the Code throughout the year ended 31st July 2022. This 

opinion is based on an internal review of compliance with the Code reported to the Search and 

Governance Committee on 3rd May 2022. 

The Corporation 

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of 

this report were as listed in the table below. 
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Heather Du 
Quesnay (Chair) 

July 2014 
June 2018 

To Dec 
2023 

- External L&Q  
Rem  
F&R 
S&G 
 

6/6 

Tim Arthur 
(Vice Chair) 

Nov 2017 
Sep 2021 

To  Nov 
2025 
 

- External F&R (Chair), 
Rem (Chair)  
 

6/6 

Mark Robertson Jul 2016 Ex-officio - Principal/ 
Accounting 
Officer 

F&R, L&Q, 
S&G, CS 

6/6 
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Nichola Harrison Sep 2010 
July 2014  
June 2018 

To Jul 
2022 

May 
2022 

External S&G(Chair), 
A&R, Rem 

5/5 

Martin Doel Sep 2017 
July 2021 

To Jul 
2025 

- External CS (Chair) 6/6 

Andy Jennings 31st July 2017 
27 June 2018 

To Jul 
2022 

July 
2022 

External A&R (Chair) 4/6 

Lynn Morgan April 2020 To Apr 
2024 

- External L&Q (Chair) 
 

5/6 

Martin Clapson  Sep 2016 
July 2020 

To Jul 
2024 

- External F&R 4/6 

Paul Gaudin July 2017 
July 2020 
 

To Jul 
2024 

- External S&G 2/6 

Jo Lancaster Sep 2017 
Jul 2021 

To Jul 
2025 

- External S&G 3/6 

Michael Cole Jan 2018 
Jan 2022 

To April 
2022 

April 
2022 

External L&Q 2/4 

Neil Hunter May 2021 To May 
2025 

- External A&R 4/6 

Richard 
Tunnicliffe 

Sep 2021 To Sep 
2025 

- External CS 5/6 

Bradley 
Dorrington 

Oct 2021 To Oct 
2025 

- External L&Q 3/5 

Tim Waller Oct 2021 To Oct 
2025 

- External A&R 4/5 

Lesley Deacon Jan 2022 To Jan 
2026 

- External L&Q 4/4 

Jack Williams April 2022 To April 
2026 

- External L&Q 2/2 

Louise Armstrong April 2022 To April 
2026 

- External A&R 1/2 

Lewis Beddow Nov 2018 To Nov 
2022 

Jan 
2022 

Staff F&R 0/2 

Michael Killick Dec 2021 To Dec 
2025 

- Staff L&Q 4/5 

Theresa van Ruth Feb 2019 
Oct 2020 

To Feb 
2023 

March 
2022 

Staff L&Q 2/4 
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Abigail Houghton Nov 2020 To Nov 
2024 

Oct 
2021 

Staff L&Q 1/1 

 Mason Miles Nov 2021 
June 2022 

To July 
2023 

- Student L&Q 1/5 

 Hannah Mizen Nov 2021 To Jul 
2022 

April 
2022 

Student L&Q 3/3 

 Nathan Smith June 2022 To Jul 
2023 

- Student L&Q 1/1 

Abigail Trencher June 2017 
July 2021 

To July 
2025 

- External co-
opted 
committee 
member 

F&R 1/1 

Jane Mallabone Oct 2021 To Oct 
2025 

- External co-
opted 
committee 
member 

F&R 1/1 

  

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of 

strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. 

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial 

performance of the College together with other information such as performance against funding 

targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters such as 

health and safety and environmental issues.  The Corporation normally meets six times a year, 

including a full Strategy Day. 

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees.  Each committee has 

terms of reference, which have been approved by the Corporation.  These committees are 

Finance and Resources, Remuneration, Audit and Risk, Search and Governance, Commercial 

Strategy, Learning and Quality and a Governor Emergency Planning Task and Finish Group.  Full 

minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are available 

on the College’s website or from the Clerk to the Corporation at the College’s registered address.  

Cambridge Regional College 

Kings Hedges Road 

Cambridge  

CB4 2QT 

 



Cambridge Regional College  Members’ report and financial statements 
    for the year ended 31 July 2022 

29 
 

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the 

governors.  The register is available for inspection at the above address. 

All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at 

the College’s expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the 

Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with.  The 

appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a whole. 

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to governors in a timely manner, prior to Board 

meetings.  Briefings are provided on an ad hoc basis. 

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group 

nominates its decision-making process.  The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive 

members is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which 

could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. 

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are 

separate. 

Appointments to the Corporation 

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation 

as a whole.  The Corporation has a Search and Governance Committee, consisting of three 

members of the Corporation, which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new 

member for the Corporation’s consideration.  The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that 

appropriate training is provided as required. 

Members of the Corporation are appointed for an initial term of office not exceeding four years 

and may be reappointed for a second term of four years. Governors may serve a further term 

only in exceptional circumstances on the recommendation of Corporation.  

Corporation Performance 

The Governing Body is appropriately structured to support delivery of the Strategic Plan and 

continued improvements to the College.  It plays a key role in challenging the senior management 

to ensure that the College aims are achieved.  Timely and accurate reporting ensures that 

Governors are able to challenge effectively.  Performance against the College Strategic Plan is 

reported at each Corporation meeting.  This includes an assessment of college key performance 

indicators that cover all aspects of the College’s operations including teaching and learning, 

student outcomes, satisfaction, financial sustainability and leadership and management. 

The Governing Body reviewed its own performance for 2021/22 at the Corporation meeting on 

13th December 2022. It noted and agreed the ‘Good’ grade for ‘Leadership and Management’ set 

out in the College Self-Assessment Report (SAR) for 2021/22.   Corporation has also reviewed its 

own self-assessment report and attendance data provided by the Search and Governance 
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Committee.  As a result of this self-assessment, a Governance improvement plan was approved 

by the Governing Body.  

The Governing Body is committed to development.  It held a Strategy Day in January 2022 which 

included external speakers on environmental sustainability and changes in national policy. Other 

briefing sessions given to Governors throughout the year included changes to the Ofsted 

framework, preparation for T-levels, role of the Audit Committee and a number of safeguarding 

topics.  New governors have attended the Association of College induction sessions.  The Chair 

and Clerk both attended the regional governance conference, and other Governors have 

attended various webinars hosted by the Association of Colleges. The Chair of the Learning and 

Quality Committee attended the Curriculum and Quality Chairs’ network meeting, and the Chair 

has participated in the Education and Training Foundation Chair’s Leadership programme.   

The Clerk has completed the Technical Aspects of being a Governance Professional course. She 

also attends regional Clerk network meetings which include regular training sessions.  

The Governing Body has considered DfE guidance on board reviews and has plans to commission 

an external reviewer in the future but did not carry out a formal review in 2021/2. 

Remuneration Committee 

Throughout the year ending 31 July 2022 the College’s Remuneration Committee comprised five 

members of the Corporation. 

The Remuneration Committee meets at least on an annual basis and operates in accordance with 

written terms of reference approved by the Corporation.   It makes recommendations to the 

Board on an annual basis on the remuneration and benefits of the Principal and other key 

management personnel that are defined as Senior Post Holders.  The following are designated as 

Senior Post Holders by the Corporation: 

• Principal/Chief Executive (Mark Robertson) 

• Deputy Principal Finance and Resources (Derek Sharp until September 2021; Stephen 

Jones from September 2021) 

• Deputy Principal Commercial and Student Experience (Michelle Dowse) 

• Vice Principal Curriculum Development (Kate Da Costa) 

The Principal reports to the Chair of the Governing Body, who undertakes an annual review of 

the Principal’s performance against the College’s overall objectives using both qualitative and 

quantitative measures of performance. 

Corporation adopted the AoC Colleges’ Senior Post Holder Remuneration Code (AoC Code) at its 

meeting on 17 December 2019. 

The College has established a policy for the Remuneration of Senior Post Holders which is 

available to the public on the College website.  The Remuneration Committee has updated the 
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policy to ensure that it has regard to the principles of the AoC Code.  The policy includes reference 

to the College’s policy on the retention of external income.  Senior Post Holders must seek 

approval from the Remuneration Committee for the retention of any income generated from 

external bodies in a personal capacity.  There must be a clear and justifiable rationale for the 

retention of any such income. 

In recommending the remuneration of Senior Post Holders for each year, the Committee has 

regard to the latest benchmark data for relevant roles published in the Association of Colleges 

Senior Pay Survey 2022.  The Committee considers salary data for colleges with a turnover of 

£30-£40m.  The Committee also considers the data for colleges in the Midlands and in the London 

area.  The comparison data serves as a guide to the Committee, as the Committee also takes into 

account other factors set out in its Remuneration Policy, such as the context of the College and 

the performance of the individual role holder. 

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2022 are set out in note 6 to the financial 

statements.  

Audit and Risk Committee 

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises a minimum of three members of the Corporation 

(excluding the Accounting Officer and Chair).  The Committee operates in accordance with 

written terms of reference approved by the Corporation.  Its purpose is to advise the Corporation 

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s systems of internal control and its 

arrangements for risk management, control and governance processes. 

The Audit and Risk Committee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the 

College’s internal auditors, reporting accountants and financial statements auditors, who have 

access to the Committee for independent discussion, without the presence of college 

management.  The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE funding 

bodies as they affect the College’s business. 

The College’s internal auditors review the system of internal control, risk management controls 

and governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings 

to management and the Audit and Risk Committee. 

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and 

internal audit undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been 

implemented. 

The Audit and Risk Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal 

auditors and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for audit and non-audit work 

as well as reporting annually to the Corporation. 

The Audit and Risk Committee met four times in the year to 31 July 2022 with 100% attendance 

at all meetings. The member of the Committee and their attendance records are shown below: 
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Committee member     Meetings attended 

Andy Jennings (Chair)      4/4 

Nichola Harrison      4/4 

Neil Hunter       4/4 

Tim Waller (from October 2021)      3/3 

Louise Armstrong (from April 2022)    1/1 

 

Finance and Resources Committee 

The Finance and Resources Committee comprises four members of the Corporation, including 

the Chair of Corporation and the Principal, as well as two co-opted members.  The purpose of the 

Committee is to assist the Corporation by providing a forum for consideration of financial and 

human resources planning.  The Committee makes recommendations to Corporation on financial 

planning, including the College’s annual budget and proposals, and the College’s estates strategy.  

It also monitors the College’s financial performance and advises on the College’s employment 

policies and terms and conditions for staff. 

The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the 

Corporation.  The Finance and Resources Committee meets at least on a termly basis. 

Learning and Quality Committee 

The Learning and Quality Committee comprises nine members of the Corporation, including the 

Chair of Corporation, the Principal, two Staff Governors and two Student Governors. The purpose 

of the Committee is to review and make recommendations to Corporation on the overall quality 

of the students’ learning experience at the College, student achievement and other key indicators 

for performance. 

The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the 

Corporation.  The Learning and Quality Committee meets at least on a termly basis. 

Search and Governance Committee 

The Search and Governance Committee comprises three members of the Corporation, including 

the Principal.  It is responsible for the recruitment, induction and training of Governors and for 

overseeing the College’s governance processes. Corporation agreed to expand the Committee’s 

terms of reference to include Human Resource issues and to be renamed ‘People and 

Governance Committee’ from July 2022. The Committee operates in accordance with written 

terms of reference approved by the Corporation and meets at least twice a year. 
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Commercial Strategy Committee 

The Commercial Strategy Committee comprises four members of the Corporation, including the 

Principal. It provides a forum for consideration of the College’s commercial and business 

strategies.  This includes giving recommendations to the Corporation on the College’s 

engagement with local and regional employers, and wider external relations as well as advising 

on  the development of business ventures.  In 2021/22, the Committee’s terms of reference were 

expanded to include environmental sustainability. Corporation also agreed to change the name 

of the Committee to Skills, Enterprise and Sustainability with effect from July 2022. The 

Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the Corporation 

and meets at least three times a year. 

Governor Emergency Planning Task and Finish Group 

In 2020, Corporation established a Governor Emergency Planning Task and Finish Group to 

oversee the actions required to drive improvements identified in the Ofsted report, as well as to 

address issues arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. The Group met for a final meeting on 

November 2021 when it was agreed that the Group would no longer meet and its work would 

now be continued through the Corporation’s existing committee structure. 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

Scope of responsibility 

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for 

reviewing its effectiveness.  However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate 

the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting 

Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the 

College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which 

he is personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to him in the 

Funding Agreement between Cambridge Regional College and the funding bodies.  He is also 

responsible for reporting to the Corporation any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal 

control. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise 

the risks to the achievement of college policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood 

of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 

efficiently, effectively and economically.  The system of internal control has been in place in 

Cambridge Regional College for the year ended 31 July 2022 and up to the date of approval of 

the annual report and accounts. 
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Capacity to handle risk 

The Corporation supports management in managing risk faced in the operation of its business. 
In so doing it: 
 

• actively seeks to identify potential risks (arising from both threats and opportunities) 
and to plan to mitigate against damage arising from potential risks 

• targets management effort, and redirect resources where appropriate, to those areas 
which present highest risk to the organisation 

• formally review risks and the risk management process on a regular basis 

• embeds risk management in critical business planning and review processes. 
 

The College’s Risk Register is reviewed by Corporation at every meeting and it reviews the Risk 

Management Policy every three years.  Major risks are set out under the Strategic Report.  

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the 

operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.  

The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating 

and managing the College’s significant risks that has been in place for the period ending 31 July 

2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.  This process is regularly 

reviewed by the Corporation. 

The risk and control framework 

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, 

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and 

accountability.  In particular, it includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting and forecast systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed 

and agreed by the governing body 

• regular reviews by the governing body of periodic and annual financial reports which 

indicate financial performance against forecasts 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance 

• clearly defined capital investment control guidelines 

• the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate. 

The College retains a third party company to provide internal audit services, which operates in 

accordance with the requirements of the ESFA’s Post 16 Audit Code of Practice.  The work of the 

internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and 

annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis.  The analysis of risks and the internal audit 

plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee.  

At minimum, annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the governing body with a report 

on internal audit activity in the College.  The report includes the HIA’s independent opinion on 
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the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of risk management, controls and 

governance processes. 

Responsibilities under funding agreements 

The College was selected for an ESFA funding assurance audit in 2021/22.    The audit identified 

a number of recommendations to improve the College’s administration of ESFA funded provision, 

particularly in relation to the recording of Off the Job hours. The Audit and Risk Committee has 

considered the auditors’ report and action plan which it agrees is appropriate and reasonable. In 

addition, the Audit and Risk Committee has assessed the regularity self-assessment 

questionnaire and reports from the internal and external audit services. As a consequence, and 

notwithstanding the issues raised by the ESFA funding audit, the Corporation considers that it 

has met all its contractual responsibilities under its funding agreements and contracts with ESFA.  

Statement from the Audit and Risk Committee 

Having reviewed the College’s and its own operation during the period 2021/22, together with 

the performance of the internal and financial statements audit services, the Audit and Risk 

Committee has advised Corporation that it believes that the College has adequate and effective 

risk management processes, control processes, and governance processes. These constitute an 

acceptable framework of control which provides reasonable assurance to the Corporation 

regarding the effective and efficient achievement of the College’s objectives.  In addition, the 

Audit and Risk Committee is assured that effective arrangements are in place for the 

management and quality assurance of data.  

The specific areas of work undertaken by the internal auditors for the Audit and Risk Committee 

in 2021/22 were: 

• Health, Safety & Wellbeing (adequate assurance) 

• Information Governance and Data protection (substantial assurance) 

• Resource utilisation (substantial assurance) 

• Work experience (adequate assurance) 

• Budgetary controls (substantial assurance) 

• Performance management (substantial assurance) 
 

In addition, the internal auditors undertook an external review of the College’s sub-contracting 

controls. The review culminated in a certificate which provided assurance on the systems and 

controls the College had in place to manage subcontractors delivering education and training 

funded by the ESFA 2021/22. 

In the view of the Audit and Risk Committee, no significant areas of weakness were identified in 

the internal auditor reports. Where appropriate, recommendations were agreed with 

management and reasonable implementation plans put in place to address the issues reported.  

The Audit and Risk Committee also supports the recommendations arising from the ESFA funding 
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assurance audit and will monitor the completion of the action plan through further internal audit 

work in 2022/23.  

At the Audit and Risk Committee’s request to take a clear role in monitoring outstanding actions 

that arise from internal audit reviews, a progress report on the relevant recommendations was 

reviewed at each of its meetings.  The internal auditor also undertook a Follow-up Audit on the 

implementation of recommendations and gave it substantial assurance. 

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the 

system of internal control.  His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is 

informed by: 

• the work of the internal auditors 

• the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the 

development and maintenance of the internal control framework 

• comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the reporting accountant 

for regularity assurance, and the appointed funding auditors  in their management letters 

and other reports. 

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of this review of the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit and Risk Committee, which oversees 

the work of the internal auditor and other resources of assurance including the Risk Management 

Group, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is 

in place. 

The senior management team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators 

and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, 

which are embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training.  The 

senior management team and the Audit and Risk Committee also receive regular reports from 

internal audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement.   

The Audit and Risk Committee’s role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the 

arrangements for internal control.  The Corporation’s agenda includes a regular item for 

consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the senior management team 

and the Audit and Risk Committee.  The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of 

assurance and not merely reporting by exception.  At its December 2022 meeting, the 

Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2022 by considering 

documentation from the senior management team and internal audit, and taking account of 

events since 31 July 2021. 

Based on the advice of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation 

is of the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk 
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management and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for ‘the effectiveness and 

efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of 

their assets’. 

 

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13th December 2022 and signed on 

its behalf by: 

 

    

 

 

Heather Du Quesnay      Mark Robertson 

Chair of Corporation      Accounting Officer  
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Governing Body’s statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance with 

Funding body terms and conditions of funding 

The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education Skills Funding Agency 

(ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of 

funding, under the College’s grant funding agreement and contracts with the ESFA.  As part of 

our consideration we have had due regard to the requirements of the grant funding agreements 

and contract with the ESFA. 

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our 

knowledge, we are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the 

Corporation, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the 

Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contract with the ESFA, or any other public funder. 

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance 

have been discovered to date.  If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, 

these will be notified to the ESFA. 

 

 

 

 

Mark Robertson      Heather Du Quesnay 

Accounting Officer      Chair of Corporation 

       

13th December 2022      13th December 2022 
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation 

The members of the Corporation, as charity trustees, are required to present audited financial 

statements for each financial year. 

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant funding agreements and contracts with 

the ESFA, the Corporation – through it Accounting Officer – is required to prepare financial 

statements and an operating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with the 

Statement of Recommended Practice – Accounting for Further and Higher Education, ESFA’s 

college accounts direction and the UK’s Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give 

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and its surplus / deficit of income over 

expenditure for that period. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements 

• assess whether the Corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting 

assumptions qualifications or mitigating actions as appropriate 

• prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to 

assume that the College will continue in operation. 

The College is also required to prepare a Members’ Report, which describes what it is trying to 

do and how it is going about it, including information about the legal and administrative status 

of the College. 

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with 

reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the College and which enable it to 

ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with relevant legislation include 

the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting 

standards.  It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to safeguard its assets 

and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the College’s website; the 

work carried out by auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, 

the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial 

statements since they were initially presented on the website.  Legislation in the United Kingdom 

governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 

in other jurisdictions. 
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Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that the expenditure and income are 

applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to 

the authorities that govern them.  In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from  

ESFA and any other public funds are used only in accordance with ESFA’s grant funding 

agreements and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribed from time to time by 

the ESFA or any other public funder.  Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are 

appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and 

ensure they are used properly.  In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for 

securing economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and 

expenditure so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from 

ESFA and other public bodies are not put at risk. 

 

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13th December 2022 and signed on 

its behalf by: 

 

 

 

Heather Du Quesnay 

Chair of Governors 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Cambridge Regional College 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Cambridge Regional College (the ‘College’) for the 

year ended 31 July 2022 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure, the Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of 

Cashflows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 

applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial 

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice) and the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting 

for Further and Higher Education. 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2022 and of its 

surplus of income over expenditure for the year then ended;  

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice. 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) 

and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Members of the Corporation’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 

appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 

to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 
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College's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when 

the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation with respect to 

going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the 

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Corporation is responsible for the 

other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements 

does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our 

report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement 

in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post 16 Audit Code of 

Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our 

opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have 

not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 

or 

• the information given in the report of the Members of the Corporation, including the 

operating and financial review and statement of corporate governance, is inconsistent 

with the financial statements; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
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Responsibilities of Corporation 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation 

set out on page 39, the Corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements 

and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the 

Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the College’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liquidate 

the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is 

detailed below. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 

design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.  

Based on our understanding of the College and its industry, we considered that non-compliance 

with the following laws and regulations might have a material effect on the financial statements: 

compliance with the ESFA funding agreements, the OfS regulatory framework, the OFSTED 

regulatory framework, safeguarding, pensions legislation, employment regulation and health and 

safety regulation, anti-bribery, corruption and fraud, money laundering.  

To help us identify instances of non-compliance with these laws and regulations, and in 

identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect to non-compliance, our 

procedures included, but were not limited to: 
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• Inquiring of management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, as to 

whether the College is in compliance with laws and regulations, and discussing their policies 

and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations; 

• Inspecting correspondence, if any, with relevant licensing or regulatory authorities; 

• Communicating identified laws and regulations to the engagement team and remaining alert 

to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and 

• Considering the risk of acts by the College which were contrary to applicable laws and 

regulations, including fraud.   

 

We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the preparation of 

the financial statements, such as tax legislation, pension legislation.  

In addition, we evaluated the Members of the Corporation and management’s incentives and 

opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements, including the risk of 

management override of controls, and determined that the principal risks related to posting 

manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias through 

judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to, 

revenue recognition (which we pinpointed to the cut off assertion, and significant one-off or 

unusual transactions.  

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to: 

• Making enquiries of the Members of the Corporation and management on whether they had 

knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; 

• Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to 

fraud; 

• Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and 

• Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by performing 

journal entry testing. 

 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary 

responsibility for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with 

management. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection of irregularities, as these 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of 

internal controls. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 

the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 

description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Other required reporting 

Opinion on other matters prescribed in the OfS Audit Code of Practice issued under the Further 

and Higher Education Act 1992 

In our opinion, in all material respects: 

• funds provided by the OfS and UK Research and Innovation (including Research England) 

have been applied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions attached to them; 

and 

• the requirements of OfS’s accounts direction have been met. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the OfS Audit 

Code of Practice requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• the provider’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, 

has been materially misstated. 

Use of the audit report 

This report is made solely to the Corporation as a body in accordance with Article 22 of the 

College’s Articles of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 

the Corporation those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no 

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 

to anyone other than the College and the Corporation as a body for our audit work, for this 

report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

Mazars LLP 

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor  

Park View House 

58 The Ropewalk 

Nottingham 

NG1 5DW 

Date  

 

Independent Auditors Report on Regularity to the Members of the Corporation 

Mazars LLP (Dec 15, 2022 15:10 GMT)

Dec 15, 2022

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAANksq17nb3xFn_xX1DSGEe6dNxfvXfDjy
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To: The Corporation of Cambridge Regional College and Secretary of State for Education acting 

through Education and Skills Funding Agency (“ESFA”)  

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 June 2022 and further to the 

requirements and conditions of funding in the ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts, 

or those of any other public funder, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited 

assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material 

respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by Cambridge Regional College during 

the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to the purposes identified by 

Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) 

issued by ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by 

a relevant funder. 

This report is made solely to the Corporation of Cambridge Regional College and the ESFA in 

accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we 

might state to the Corporation of Cambridge Regional College and ESFA those matters we are 

required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 

do not accept, or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of Cambridge 

Regional College and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of Cambridge Regional College and the reporting accountant 

The Corporation of Cambridge Regional College is responsible, under the requirements of the 

Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and 

guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed, and income received, are applied for the 

purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions conform to the authorities that 

govern them. 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our 

profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with 

our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything 

has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, 

expenditure disbursed and income received, during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 

have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do 

not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by ESFA. We performed a 

limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework. 
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The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain 

information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to 

express a negative conclusion on regularity and propriety. 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance 

engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 

aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. 

Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and 

propriety of the corporation’s income and expenditure. 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 

• Reviewed the statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance with 
Funding body terms and conditions of funding. 

• Reviewed the College’s completed self-assessment questionnaire on regularity.  

• Read the financial memorandum with the ESFA/funding agreement with the ESFA. 

• Tested a sample of expenditure disbursed and income received to consider whether they 
have been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and in accordance with funding 
agreements where relevant. 

• Tested a sample of individual learner records. 

• Reviewed approved policies and procedures operating during the year for each funding 
stream that has specific terms attached.  

• Obtained the policy for personal gifts and/or hospitality. 

• Obtained the register of personal interests. 

• Obtained the financial regulations/financial procedures. 

• Obtained the College’s whistleblowing policy. 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material 

respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 

July 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament, that the financial 

transactions do not conform to the authorities that govern them. 

Signed: 

 

Mazars LLP 

Date: 

Mazars LLP (Dec 15, 2022 15:10 GMT)

Dec 15, 2022

https://mazars.eu1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAANksq17nb3xFn_xX1DSGEe6dNxfvXfDjy
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Cambridge Regional College 

Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 Notes    
  Year Ended  

31 July 2022 
 Year ended  

31 July 2021 
  £’000  £’000 
INCOME     
Funding body grants 2 27,800  29,963 

Tuition fees and education contracts 3 5,832  5,316 

Other income 4 2,036  1,766 

Total income  35,668  37,045 

EXPENDITURE     

Staff costs 5 28,735  27,870 

Restructuring costs 5 158  103 

Other operating expenses 6 8,539  8,991 

Interest and other finance costs 7 887  758 

Depreciation 9 3,167  3,000 

Total expenditure  41,486  40,722 

Deficit before other gains and losses  (5,818)  (3,677) 

Gain on disposal of assets  9 1,994  - 

Deficit before tax  (3,824)  (3,677) 

Taxation 8 -  - 

Deficit for the year  (3,824)  (3,677) 

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of 
assets 

9 -  - 

Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of 
pensions 

15 43,440  (1,274) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
year 

 39,616  (4,951) 

 

The statement of comprehensive income is in respect of continuing activities.   

The notes on pages 53-77 form part of these financial statements.  
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Cambridge Regional College 

College Statement of Changes in Reserve 

 Income and 
Expenditure 

Account  

 Revaluation 
Reserve 

 Total 

 £’000  £’000  £’000 
      
Balance at 1st August 2020 (11,941)  40,402  28,461 
Deficit from the income and 
expenditure account 

(3,677)  -  (3,677) 

Other comprehensive income (1,274)  -  (1,274) 
      
      
Transfers between revaluation and 
income and expenditure reserves 

159  (159)  - 

      

Balance at 31st July 2021 (16,733)  40,243  23,510 

      
Balance at 1st August 2021      
Deficit from the income and 
expenditure account 

(3,824)  -  (3,824) 

Other comprehensive income 43,440  -  43,440 
Transfers between revaluation and 
income and expenditure reserves 

158  (158)  - 

      

Balance at 31st July 2022 23,041  40,085  63,126 
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Cambridge Regional College 

Balance sheet as at 31st July 2022 

 Notes    
  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 
Non-current assets     
Tangible fixed assets 9 86,432  101,457 

Investments 10 -  - 

  86,432  101,457 

Current assets     
Stocks  17  19 

Trade and other receivables 11 1,455  1,594 

Investments  2,000  - 

Cash and cash equivalents 16 2,553  2,066 

  6,025  3,679 

Less: Creditors – amounts falling due within one year 12 (5,472)  (5,038) 

Net current assets/(liabilities)  553  (1,359) 

Total assets less current liabilities  86,985  100,098 

Less: Creditors – amounts falling due after more than 
one year 

13 (22,532)  (35,552) 

Provisions     

Defined benefit obligations 15 -  (38,823) 

Other provisions 15 (1,326)  (2,213) 

Total net assets  63,127  23,510 

Unrestricted reserves     
Income and expenditure account  23,042  (16,733) 
Revaluation reserve  40,085  40,243 

     
Total unrestricted reserves  63,127  23,510 

Total reserves  63,127  23,510 
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Cambridge Regional College 

The financial statements on pages 48-77 were approved and authorised for issue by the 

Corporation on 13th December 2022 and were signed on its behalf on that date by: 

 

    

 

Heather Du Quesnay      Mark Robertson 

Chair of Governors      Accounting Officer 
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Cambridge Regional College 

Statement of Cash Flows year ended 31st July 

 Notes  2022  2021 
   £’000  £’000 
Cash inflow from operating activities      
Deficit for the year   (3,824)  (3,677) 
Adjustment for non-cash items      
Depreciation   3,167  3,000 
Decrease/(increase) in stocks   2  4 
Decrease in debtors   139  457 
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors due within one year   429  (649) 
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors due after one year   (1,268)  (1,494) 
Decrease in provisions   (80)  (273) 
Pension costs less contributions payable   3,237  2,464 
Adjustment for investing or financing activities      
Interest payable   887  758 
Profit on sale of fixed assets   (1,994)  - 

Net cash flow from operating activities   695  590 
Cash flows from investing activities      
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets   4,008  - 
Cash divested in Year   (2,000)  - 
Grants received   83  3,701 
Payments made to acquire fixed assets   (1,568)  (3,455) 

Net cash flow from investing activities   523  246 
Cash flows from financing activities      
Interest paid   (206)  (224) 
Repayments of amounts borrowed   (525)  (511) 

   (731)  (735) 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year   487  101 
 

      
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 16  2,066  1,965 

      
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16  2,553  2,066 

 

    

 



Cambridge Regional College  Members’ report and financial statements 
    for the year ended 31 July 2022 

53 
 

 

Cambridge Regional College 

Notes to the Accounts 

1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques 

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items, which 
are considered material in relation to the financial statements. 
 
Basis of preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE 
SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2021/22 and in accordance with Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 – “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic 
of Ireland” (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant 
public benefit requirements of FRS 102. 
 
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the 
College’s accounting policies.  The College has not prepared consolidated financial statements as 
all subsidiary entities are dormant. 
 
Basis of accounting 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.  
 
Basis of consolidation 
In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union have not been consolidated 
because the college does not control those activities. 
 

Going concern  
The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and 
performance are set out in the Strategic Report.  The financial position of the College, its cash 
flow, liquidity and borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying 
notes. This year’s results have again been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic with the College’s 
income streams reducing as a consequence of a drop in income but notably international and 
apprenticeship activity.   
 
The College has put measures in place to ensure that learners may still attend College in a safe 
and secure environment as much as possible to ensure learning can continue safely. The College 
has not required direct cash flow support throughout the pandemic period and has revisited its 
cash flow projections which continue to show that the College can operate without use of its 
overdraft facility of £1.5m which remains in place and the need for this facility will be reviewed 
during 2022/23.  



Cambridge Regional College  Members’ report and financial statements 
    for the year ended 31 July 2022 

54 
 

 

The College currently has £5.5m of loans outstanding with Santander bank and Huntingdon 
District Council. Additionally, there is a £1.5m overdraft facility with Santander. The Santander 
loan is secured by a fixed and floating charge on Cambridge Campus assets and the Huntingdon 
District Council Loan on the Huntingdon Campus assets. Although the College’s forecasts and 
financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate without this overdraft facility it has 
been considered prudent to retain it and a review of its longer term need will be undertaken 
during 2022/23.  For 2021/22 one of the five bank covenants would have been breached but the 
College has had ongoing conversations with Santander and obtained agreement that for the 
2021/22 year, the covenant breach will not trigger a default of the loan. The bank recognizes the 
challenges the College has had to contend with as a consequence of Covid disruption and the war 
in Ukraine and the impact of both on consumer confidence especially in international activity.  
 
The College’s cash reserves were significantly bolstered during 2021/22 by the sale of the I Block 
building and despite some significant inflationary pressure challenging the achievement of the 
2022/23 budget, the College believes it will be able to continue in operation and meet its 
liabilities taking account of the current position and principal risks for a minimum of 12 months 
or more based on latest forecast and cash flow projections. 
 
Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason continues to adopt the 
going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements.  
 
Recognition of income 
Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants are 
accounted for under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102.  Funding body recurrent grants 
are measured in line with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the 
particular income stream involved.  Any under or over achievement for the Adult Skills Budget 
which is not exempt from clawback is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant 
recognized in the income and expenditure account.  The final grant income is normally 
determined with the conclusion of the year-end reconciliation process with the funding body 
following the year-end, and the results of any funding audits. Revenue is only recognized when 
there is certainty about receipt. 16-18 study programme funding is not normally subject to 
reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments. 
 
The recurrent grant from the Office for Students represents the funding allocations attributable 
to the current financial year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognized in income when 
the College is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met.  Income 
received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognized as deferred 
income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met. 
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Capital grant funding 
Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognized in income 
over the expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102.  
Other capital grants are recognized in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject 
to any performance related conditions being met. 

 

Fee income 
Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure, which is not a discount and is 
recognized in the period for which it is received. 

Investment income 
All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the 
period in which it is earned on a receivable basis. 
 
Agency arrangements 
The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds 
and employer incentive payments.  Related payments received from the funding bodies and 
subsequent disbursements to students and employers are excluded from the income and 
expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal 
economic benefit related to the transaction. 

Accounting for post-employment benefits 
Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers’ 
Pension Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined 
benefit plans, which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pension.  
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost 
of pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost 
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions 
are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit 
method.  

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined 
benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the 
contributions recognized as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which 
services are rendered by employees. 

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS 
liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate 
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The 
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. 
The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme 
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff 
costs as incurred.  
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Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognized in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and 
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme 
assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The 
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the 
scheme assets is recognized in interest and other finance costs. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in actuarial gains and losses. 
 
Short-term employment benefits 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are 
recognized as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any 
unused benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay 
as a result of the unused entitlement. 
 
Enhanced pensions 
The actual cost of any enhanced on-going pension to any former member of staff is paid by a 
college annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the on-going 
pension of any former member of staff is charged in full to a college’s income in the year that the 
member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet 
using the enhanced pension spreadsheet provided by the funding bodies. 
 
Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior 
to the date of transition to the FE HE SORP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the 
revalued amount at the date of that revaluation. 
 
Where parts of a fixed asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
of fixed assets 

 
Land and buildings 
Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised. 
Freehold buildings are depreciated over 25-50 years. Where applicable, any related grants 
are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released to the 
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related 
asset on a systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income 
is allocated between creditors due within one year and those due after more than one 
year.  

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life. 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be 
recoverable. 
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On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book 
value of land and buildings but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties 
in the future however, land was revalued as at 31st July 2017 and again at 31st July 2020 
for bank loan and overdraft security. The revalued amount is now included in the accounts 
and going forward all land will be revalued every 3 years. 
 
Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets 
Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it 
is charged to income in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to 
the College, in which case it is recognized and depreciated on the relevant basis. 
 
Equipment 
Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recognized as expenditure in 
the period of acquisition.  All other equipment is capitalised at cost.  
 
Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful 
economic life as follows: 

• Buildings      50 years 

• Industrial plant and equipment     25 years 

• Machinery, equipment and plant (fixed)  10 years 

• Motor vehicles     5 years  

• Computer equipment           5 years  

• Furniture, fixtures and fittings     5 years 
 
Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are recognized as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.  
 
Investments in subsidiaries  
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial 
statements.  
 
Other investments 
Cash held in deposit accounts with a notice period greater than 3 months are classified as 
investments. They are measured at cost less impairment. 
 
Stock 
Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, being selling price less costs 
to complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and 
defective items. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable 
on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. Cash equivalents are 
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short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 
insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has 
maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Financial liabilities and equity 
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s 
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.  
 
All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial 
instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the 
transaction price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial 
instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, however the College has calculated 
that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so 
these financial instruments are stated on the balance sheet at historical cost. Loans and 
investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted. 
 
Foreign currency translation 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling 
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting 
exchange differences being taken to income in the period in which they arise. 
 
Taxation 
The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. 
Accordingly, the College is exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received 
within categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of 
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied 
exclusively to charitable purposes.  

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover a % of 
the VAT charged on its inputs (3.75% during 2021/22).  Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in 
the costs of such inputs and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the 
inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.   The College’s subsidiary companies are 
subject to corporation tax and VAT in the same way as any commercial organisation. 
 
Provisions and contingent liabilities 
Provisions are recognized when: 

• the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event;  

• it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; 
and  

• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
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Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to 
settle the obligation is recognized at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of 
the discount is recognized as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period 
it arises. 

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made the following judgements: 

• Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are 

operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the 

risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a 

lease by lease basis. 

 

• Determined whether there are indicators of impairment of the group’s tangible assets. 
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability 
and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a 
larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. 
 

•  Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies 
as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

• Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties and land, are depreciated over 
their useful lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives 
of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a 
number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and 
maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider 
issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected 
disposal values. 
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• Local Government Pension Scheme 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety 
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions 
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 
19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. The actuary has used a roll 
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed 
at 31 March 2019 to value the pensions liability at 31 July 2022.  Any differences between 
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would 
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

As the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date is less than 
the fair value of plan assets at that date, the plan has a notional surplus. As management 
do not consider that the College will be able to recover the surplus either through reduced 
contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan, the surplus has not been 
recognised in these financial statements in line with paragraph 28.22 of FRS102. 

 

2. Funding body grants 
Year ended 31 July 
 2022  2021 

 £’000  £’000 

Recurrent grants    

Education and Skills Funding Agency – 16-18 19,109  19,156 

Education and Skills Funding Agency – adult 1,962  - 

Cambridge & Peterborough Combined Agency – 
adult 

2,441  5,817 

Education and Skills Funding Agency – 
apprenticeships 

2,825  3,446 

Specific grants    

Releases of government capital grants 799  685 

TPS Pension Funding 664  695 

Education and Skills Funding Agency – provider 
relief scheme 

-  164 

Total 27,800  29,963 
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3. Tuition fees and education contracts 
Year ended 31 July 
 2022  2021 

 £’000  £’000 

Adult education fees 919  662 
Fees for FE loan supported courses 249  326 
Fees for HE loan supported courses 762  754 

Total tuition fees 1,930  1,742 
 
Education contracts 

 
3,902 

  
3,574 

Total 5,832  5,316 

 

4. Other income 

Year ended 31 July 

 2022  2021 

 £’000  £’000 

Catering and residences 27  - 
Other income generating activities 276  13 
Non-government capital grants 586  482 
JRS funding -  190 
Miscellaneous income 1,147  1,081 

Total 2,036  1,766 

 

In 2021, the Corporation furloughed some of the catering, estates and other non-grant 

funded delivery staff under the government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The 

funding received of £190,000 relates to staff costs which are included within the staff 

costs note (note 5) as appropriate. 

 

5. Staff costs 

Year ended 31 July 

The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by 

the College during the year was: 

 2022 
No. 

 2021 
No. 

Teaching staff 297  295 
Non-teaching staff 407  424 

 704  719 
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Staff costs for the above persons 

 2022  2021 

 £’000  £’000 

Wages and salaries 18,908  19,561 
Social security costs 1,747  1,674 
Other pension costs 7,251  5,744 

Payroll sub total 27,906  26,979 
Contracted out staffing services 829  891 

 28,735  27,870 
Restructuring costs – Contractual 158  103 

Total Staff costs 28,893  27,973 

 

Key management personnel 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for 

planning, directing and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by 

the Senior Management Team, which comprises the Principal, Deputy Principals, Vice 

Principals and HR Director.  Staff costs include compensation paid to key management 

personnel for loss of office. 

Emoluments of key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid 

staff 

 2022 
No. 

 2021 
No. 

The number of key management personnel 
including the Accounting Officer was 

 
6 

  
6 
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The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual 

emoluments, excluding employer contributions to national insurance and pensions but 

including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was: 

 Key management 
personnel 

 Other staff 

 2022 
No. 

 2021 
No. 

 2022 
No. 

 2021 
No. 

£60,001 to £65,000 -  -  1  - 
£65,001 to £70,000 2  2  1  1 
£70,001 to £75,000 1  1  -  - 
£85,001 to £90,000 1  -   -  - 
£90,001 to £95,000 1  1  -  - 
£95,001 to £100,000 -  1  -  - 
£160,001 to £165,000 1  1  -  - 

 6  6  2  1 

  

Key management personnel compensation is made up as follows: 

  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 

Salaries – gross of salary sacrifice and 
waived 

 553  550 

Employers National Insurance  71  69 
Benefits in kind  7  5 

  631  624 
Pension contributions  129  126 

Total key management personnel  760  750 

 

The above compensation includes an amount payable to the Accounting Officer (who is 

also the highest paid officer).   

Their pay and remuneration is as follows: 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Salaries – Cambridge Regional College 157  157 
Benefits in kind 3  3 
Pension Contributions 37  34 

 197  194 

 

The College does not operate a performance related scheme for Senior Post Holders. 
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The Governing Body adopted AoC’s Senior Staff Remuneration Code in December 2019 
and assesses pay in line with its principles.  
 
The Remuneration Committee has considered the pay multiple of the Principal and Chief 
Executive and the median earnings of the College’s workforce.  Data was assessed for the 
two years since the merger with Huntingdonshire Regional College.  The Committee 
assesses the pay multiple against national benchmarks where data is available.  

 
Relationship of Principal/Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a 

multiple 

 2022   2021 
Principal’s basic salary as a multiple of the median of 
all staff 

5.9   5.9 

Principal’s total remuneration as a multiple of the 
median of all staff (excluding pension contributions) 

6.0   6.0 

 

The members of the Corporation other than the Accounting Officer and the staff 
members, did not receive any payment from the institution other than the 
reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses incurred in the course of their duties. 

 

6. Other operating expenses 

Year ended 31 July 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Teaching costs 4,293  4,310 
Non-teaching costs 2,058  2,824 
Premises costs 2,188  1,857 

Total 8,539  8,991 

 

Other operating expenses include: 

 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Auditors’ remuneration    
Financial statements audit 32  29 
Internal audit 21  27 

    
Hire of assets under operating leases 41  50 
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7. Interest and other finance costs 

Year ended 31 July 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans: 206  224 

 206  224 
Net interest on pension provisions  681  534 

Total 887  758 

    
8. Taxation 

Year ended 31 July 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

 -  - 

Total -  - 

    
 

The members do not believe that the College was liable for any corporation tax arising 

out of its activities during either year. The College is considered to pass the tests set out 

in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a 

charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is exempt 

from taxation in respect of income within categories covered by sections 478-488 of the 

Corporation Tax Act 2010. 
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9. Tangible fixed assets 

Year ended 31 July 

 Land and buildings Equipment Assets in 
the course 
of 
construction 

Total 

 Freehold Long 
leasehold 

   

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Cost or valuation      
At 1st August 2021 127,150 524 21,526 3,287 152,487 
Adjust opening bal 103 - (128) (7) (32) 

Restated open bal 127,253 524 21,398 3,280 152,454 
Additions 653 - 804 111 1,568 
Disposal (13,539) (524) (1,535) - (15,599) 
Transfer 
Released to I&E 

1,988 
- 

- 
- 

1,275 
- 

(3,263) 
(17) 

- 
(17) 

      

At 31st July 2022 116,354 0 21,942 111 138,407 

      
Depreciation      
At 1st August 2021 33,303 - 17,727 - 51,030 
Adjust opening bal 242 - (274) - (33) 

Restated open bal 33,545 - 17,453 - 50,997 
Charge for the year 2,024 - 1,143 - 3,167 
Disposals (1,364) - (826) - (2,190) 

At 31st July 2022 34,205 - 17,770 - 51,975 

      
Net book value at 
31st July 2022 

82,149 - 4,172 111 86,432 

      
Net book value at 
31st July 2021 
NBV restated 31st  
July 2021 

93,847 
 

93,708 

524 
 

524 

3,799 
 

3945 

3,287 
 

3280 

101,457 
 

101,457 

  

Land was revalued in 2020 by Gerard Eve LLP, a firm of independent chartered surveyors.   
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10. Non-current investments 

Year ended 31 July 

 College  College 
 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Investments in subsidiary companies -  - 
Other non-current asset investments -  - 

Total -  - 

    
The College owns 100 per cent of the issued ordinary share capital of the following companies,  
all companies incorporated in England and Wales.  All companies are dormant. 

⎯ Wisteria Travel Limited 

⎯ Cambridgeshire FE Limited 

⎯ Morph Recordings Limited 

⎯ Invest in Skills Limited 

11. Trade and other receivables 

Year ended 31 July 

 College  College 
 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Amounts falling due within one year:    

Trade receivables 243  377 

Prepayments and accrued income 582  613 

Amounts owed by the ESFA 21  442 

Other Debtors 609  162 

Total 1,455  1,594 
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12. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Year ended 31 July 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Bank loans and overdrafts 520  515 

Trade payables 730  760 

Other creditors 194  286 

Other taxation and social security 856  883 

Accruals and deferred income 982  1036 

Deferred income – government capital 1,475  1,505 

Payments received in advance International 106  53 

Amounts owed to Funding bodies 609  - 

Total 5,472  5,038 

    

13. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 

Year ended 31 July 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 

Bank loans  4,987  5,517 

Deferred income – government capital 17,545  30,035 

Total 22,532  35,552 

    

14. Maturity of debt 

Year ended 31 July 

 

Bank loans and overdrafts 

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as 
follows: 

2022  2021 

 £’000  £’000 

In one year or less 520  515 

Between one and two years 437  520 

Between two and five years 1,050  1,147 

In five years or more 3,500  3,850 

Total 5,507  6,032 
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The Huntingdonshire Regional Council loan is repayable by instalments falling due 
between February 2014 and February 2024 and is secured on a portion of the freehold 
land and buildings of the College. The interest rate is fixed at 3.34% and the balance 
payable at 31st July 2022 was £0.26m.  The remainder of £5.25m is payable to Santander 
and is also secured on a portion of the College’s freehold land.  The interest rate on this 
loan is fixed at 3.602% until July 2027 at which point the unpaid balance will be payable 
in the absence of a new agreement. 

 

15. Provisions 

Year ended 31 July 

 Defined benefit 
obligations 

Enhanced 
pensions  

Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

At 1st August 2021 38,823 2,213 41,036 

Expenditure in the 
period 

3,810 (80) 

 

3,730 

Actuarial loss/(gain) (42,633) (807) (43,440) 

At 31st July 2022 -   1,326 1,326 

    

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College’s membership of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme.  Further details are given in Note 21. 

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the 
College’s employ and commitments for re-organisation costs from which the College 
cannot reasonably withdraw at the balance sheet date. 

The principal assumptions for this calculation are: 

 

  2022 2021 

Price inflation  2.9% 2.9% 

Discount rate  3.3% 1.6% 
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16. Cash and cash equivalents 

Year ended 31 July 

 At 1 August 
2021 

 Cash 
flows 

  At 31 July 
2022 

 £’000  £’000   £’000 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,066  487   2,553 

Total 2,066  487   2,553 

       

Debt Due within one year (515)  (5)   (520) 

Debt Due over one year (5,517)  530   (4,987) 

 (6,032)  525 

 

  (5,507) 

Net Funds (3,966)  1,012   (2,954) 

        

17. Lease obligations 

At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 

as follows: 

 

  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 
Future minimum lease payments due     
     
Other     
Not later than one year  7  35 
Later than one year and not later than five years  -  3 

Later than five years  -  - 

  7  38 

     

Total lease payments due  7  38 

 

 

 

18. Events after the reporting period 

      There are no events after the reporting period that require reporting. 
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19. Defined Benefit Obligations 

The College’s employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans; the 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the 

Cambridgeshire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff.  Both are 

multi-employer defined-benefit plans. 

 

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified 

actuaries.  The latest formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was as at 31 March 2016 and of 

the LGPS 31 March 2019. 

 

 

Total pension cost for the year ending 31st July    
  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 
     
Teachers’ Pension Scheme: contributions   2,074  1,997 
Local Government Pension Scheme:     

- Contribution paid 1,974  2,003  

- FRS 102 (28) charge 3,238  2,464  

Charge to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

  
5,212 

  
4,467 

Enhanced pension charge to Statement of 
Comprehensive Income 

  
(35) 

  
(21) 

Total Pension Cost for Year within staff 
cost 

  
7,251 

  
6,443 

     
Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, 
governed by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014.  These regulations apply to 
teachers in schools and other educational establishments, including colleges.  Membership is 
automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions. Teachers and lecturers are able to 
opt out of the TPS. 
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ’pay as you go‘ basis – these 
contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under 
arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by 
public funds provided by Parliament. 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The 
College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. 

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for 
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan.  The College has set out 
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above the information available on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the 
anticipated contribution rates. 

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service 
Pension Act 2013. Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return 
assuming funds are invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of return. 

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report 
was published by the Department for Education in April 2019.  The valuation reported total scheme 
liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to 
the effective date of £218 billion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together 
with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £198 billion giving a notional past 
service deficit of £22 billion. 

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable 
pay from September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/9). DfE has agreed to pay a 
teacher pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2021-22 
academic year. 

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’ 
Pension Scheme website. 

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,074,357 (2021: £1,996,872). 

Local Government Pension Scheme 
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by 
Cambridgeshire Local Authority. The total contribution including deficit contribution payment 
made for the year ended 31 July 2022 was £2,464,139 of which employer’s contributions totaled 
£1,933,171 and employees’ contributions totaled £530,968. The agreed contribution rates for 
future years are 22.70% for employer and range from 5.5% to 12.5% for employees, depending on 
salary according to a national scale. 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 
updated to 31 July 2022 by a qualified independent actuary. 
  At 31 July 2022 At 31 July 2021 

Rate of increase in salaries  3.20% 3.30% 

Future pensions increases  2.70% 2.80% 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities  3.50% 1.60% 

Inflation assumption (CPI)  2.70% 2.80% 

Commutation of pensions to lump sums  See below See below 
 

CPI assumption 

Pension Increase Orders are used to set the level of pension increases with effect from 1 April of 

each year, normally with reference to the change in CPI inflation over the 12 months to the 
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previous September, which was announced in October. This was an increase of 7% and was 

considerably higher than the CPI assumption set by employers as at 31 July 2022. As Pension 

Increase orders are not automatically set with reference to the September CPI and they are only 

known with certainty when the Pension Increase Order is enacted by Parliament, which is usually 

in April of the following year, no adjustment has been made to recognise the possible 2023 

Pension Increase Order within the CPI assumption. 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in 

mortality rates.  The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 At 31 July 2022 At 31 July 2021 
 Years Years 
Retiring today   

Males 22.00 22.50 

Females 24.20 24.40 

Retiring in 20 years   

Males 22.90 23.20 

Females 26.00 26.20 

The College’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of 

return were: 

  Long term 
rate of 
return 

expected at 
31 July 2022 

Fair value 
at 31 July 

2022 

£’000 

Long-term 
rate of 
return 

expected at 
31 July 2021 

Fair Value 
at 31 July 

2021 

£’000 

Equities  3.50% 58,478 1.60% 69,911 
Bonds  3.50% 10,860 1.60% 4,131 
Property  3.50% 13,367 1.60% 4,778 
Cash  3.45% 835 1.55% 1,403 

Total fair value of plan 
assets 

  83,540  80,223 

     

Actual return on plan 
assets 

  2,365  12,911 

      
 

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan 

and enhanced pensions benefits at 31st July is as follows: 
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 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 
Fair value of plan assets 83,540  80,223 
Present value of liabilities  (79,407)  (119,046) 
Less notional surplus not recognised (4,133)  - 

Net pensions surplus/(liability) (Note 15) -  (38,823) 

 

As the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date is less than 

the fair value of plan assets at that date, the plan has a notional surplus. As management 

do not consider that the College will be able to recover the surplus either through reduced 

contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan, the surplus has not been 

recognised in these financial statements in line with paragraph 28.22 of FRS102. 

 

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan 

for the year ending 31st July are as follows: 

 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 
Amounts included in staff costs    
Current service cost 5,212  4,439 
Past service cost -  28 

Total 5,212  4,467 

 

  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 
Amounts included in investment income 
Net interest income  646  513 

     
Return on pension plan assets  1,075  11,977 
Changes in assumptions underlying the present 
value of plan liabilities 
Less notional surplus not recognized 

 45,691 
 

(4,133) 

 (12,413) 
 

- 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

 42,633  (436) 
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Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during year 
  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 
Deficit in scheme at 1 August  (38,823)  (35,522) 
Movement in year:     
 Current service cost  (5,212)  (4,439) 
 Employer contributions  2,047  2,114 
 Past service cost 

Contributions unfunded benefits 
 - 

1 
 (28) 

- 
 Net interest on the defined (liability)  (646)  (513) 
 Actuarial gain or loss 

Less notional surplus not recognized 
 46,766 

(4,133) 
 (435) 

- 

Net defined liability at 31 July   -  (38,823) 

     
 
Asset and Liability Reconciliation 

    

  2022  2021 
  £’000  £’000 
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 
     
Defined benefit obligations at start of period  119,046  101,677 
Current service cost  5,212  4,439 
Interest cost  1,936  1,447 
Contributions by Scheme participants  531  536 
Changes in financial assumptions  (45,691)  12,413 
Estimated benefits paid  (1,626)  (1,493) 
Settlements  (1)  (1) 
Past service cost  -  28 

Defined benefit obligations at end of period  79,407  119,046 

   
 

  

  2022  2021 
Reconciliation of assets 
 

 £’000  £’000 
 

Fair value of plan assets at start of period  80,223  66,155 
Interest on plan assets  1,290  934 
Return on plan assets  1,075  11,977 
Employer contributions  2,047  2,114 
Contributions by Scheme participants  531  536 
Estimated benefits paid  (1,626)  (1,493) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period  83,540  80,223 
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These accounts show a past service cost of £230 million in respect of the McCloud / 

Sergeant judgment which ruled that the transitional protection for some members of 

public service schemes implemented when they were reformed constituted age 

discrimination. This provision is just under 2% of the total scheme liability as at 31 July 

2022. The calculation of adjustment to past service costs, £7 billion, arising from the 

outcome of the Court of Appeal judgment is based on a number of key assumptions 

including: 

• the form of remedy adopted 

• how the remedy will be implemented 

• which members will be affected by the remedy 

• the earning assumptions 

• the withdrawal assumption 

The other financial and demographic assumptions adopted to calculate the past service 

cost are the same as those used to calculate the overall scheme liability. Adopting 

different assumptions, or making other adjustments to reflect behavioural changes 

stemming from the judgment, would be expected to change the disclosed past service 

cost. Similarly, allowing for variations in individual members’ future service or salary 

progression is expected to produce higher costs. The past service cost is particularly 

sensitive to the difference between assumed long term general pay growth and the CPI. 

If the long-term salary growth assumptions were 0.5% pa lower, then the past service cost 

disclosed here would be expected to reduce by 50% and conversely a 0.5% p.a. increase 

would increase the estimated cost by 65%. 

 

20. Related party transactions 

Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the Board of 

governors being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable 

that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the Board of 

governors may have an interest.  All transactions involving such organisations are 

conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the College’s financial regulations and 

normal procurement procedures.   

 

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors (including the Principal) during 

the year was £15 (2020-21: £0 to governors including the Principal).  This represents travel 

and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket expenses incurred in attending 

Governor meetings and charity events in their official capacity. 

 

No Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College or its 

subsidiaries during the year (2020: Nil). 
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21. Amounts disbursed as agent 

Learner support funds 

 2022  2021 
 £’000  £’000 
    
Balance bought forward 93  95 
Funding body grants – hardship support 521  498 
ALL repayment (93)  - 
Disbursed to students (400)  (470) 
Administration costs (13)  (30) 
    

Balance unspent as at 31 July 2022, included in 
creditors 

108  93 

    
    

Funding body grants are available solely for students.  In the majority of instances, the 

College only acts as a paying agent.  In these circumstances, the grants and related 

reimbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

22. Post balance sheet events 

 

On 29 November 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclassified all college corporations 

as public sector institutions with immediate effect and this prompted the Department for 

Education to introduce some new rules for colleges which will take effect during 2022/23. 

 

The College considers this announcement to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event 

and is evaluating the implications of the announcement and the potential new rules but does 

not consider that they will have an impact on these financial statements. 
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